
From: Phil Koen
To: Laurel Prevetti; Gitta Ungvari; Wendy Wood; Rick Tinsley
Subject: CIP Detail - agenda item 7
Date: Sunday, March 12, 2023 7:53:13 AM
Attachments: Pages from CIP-Transmittal-Letter.pdf

[EXTERNAL SENDER]

Hello Laurel and Gitta,

Would you please distribute the attached schedule from the FY 23 CIP Budget to the FC. This
schedule should be read in conjunction with Table 2 found on page 4 of the CIP Staff Report
for agenda item 7

Note that of the $12,547,671 of “new funding” shown in Table 2, only $40,000 was for one
new CIP project. To be clear, the FY 23 Capital plan only funded 1 new capital project for
$40,000. 

As shown in the attached schedule, $12,507,671 was additional funding for existing CIP
projects. The Staff may want to discuss why this occurred and if it is normal to have the
majority of new annual capital funding to go to existing projects as opposed to new projects.

Additionally, the schedule shows that there are 8 capital projects that have budgets exceeding
$1m. It would be helpful if the staff provided additional information about the budget
performance of these 8 projects in terms of budget vs original first budget approved and
schedule performance in terms of current estimated completion date vs. first estimate of
completion date.

The reason for asking for this information is when the majority of an annual capital plan is
allocated to existing projects, that is usually a good indicator that projects are behind schedule
and over original budget. Part of solving the Town’s capital challenge is understanding the
effectiveness of the CIP process in controlling costs and schedule. Project delays will always
drive project increases. 

One project that exemplifies this issue is the building replacement at the Corporate Yard. In
researching the project, it was first approved in the FY 2016 CIP budget for $420,000 with a
target completion date of Fall 2016. It appears that the project now has a budget of $1,371,361
with a target completion date of Spring 2013 - seven years later. 

The FC needs to understand if schedule slippage is a normal occurrence for CIP projects in
flight and the magnitude of budget over runs in order to formulate recommendations that will
improve the capital allocation process for the Town. The elimination of schedule
slippage/budget over runs is a “source of capital” and will allow the Town to reallocate this
“saved” capital to other needs.

Thank you.

Phil Koen 

ATTACHMENT 7





From: Phil Koen
To: Laurel Prevetti; Gitta Ungvari; Wendy Wood; Rick Tinsley
Subject: Pages from Financial-Summaries - Capital Plan - FY 23(1).pdf
Date: Sunday, March 12, 2023 11:31:09 AM
Attachments: Pages from Financial-Summaries - Capital Plan - FY 23(1).pdf

[EXTERNAL SENDER]

Hello Laurel and Gitta, 

Would you please distribute the attached schedule from the FY 23 CIP budget to the FC. This
schedule should be read in conjunction with the Statement of Sources of Funds (attachment
#3) in the Staff memo for agenda item #7 - CIP discussion. 

The attached schedule shows the total annual revenue, including fund transfers into the GFAR,
forecasted to be available for all programmed capital projects. For FY 24 the forecast shows
total revenue and transfers in of $7.5m with $6.1m programmed for capital expenditures. That
leaves $1.4m in excess revenues available for capital allocation. 

Additionally, there is $9.9m in forecasted total beginning fund balances, not including
approximately $11m in General Fund Capital Project reserves. This suggests there is a total of
$22.3m in additional liquidity potentially available for capital allocation in FY 24. 

It would be helpful to the discussion if Staff could confirm that an additional $22.3m is
potentially available. 

Thank you,

Phil Koen 





From: Gitta Ungvari
To: Wendy Wood
Cc: Laurel Prevetti
Subject: FW: Pages from Financial-Summaries - Capital Plan - FY 23 (2).pdf
Date: Monday, March 13, 2023 8:55:30 AM
Attachments: Pages from Financial-Summaries - Capital Plan - FY 23 (2).pdf

Commissioner Comment 2
 

From: Phil Koen <pkoen@monteropartners.com> 
Sent: Sunday, March 12, 2023 9:23 AM
To: Laurel Prevetti <LPrevetti@losgatosca.gov>; Gitta Ungvari <GUngvari@losgatosca.gov>; Rick
Tinsley <ricktinsley1@gmail.com>
Subject: Pages from Financial-Summaries - Capital Plan - FY 23 (2).pdf
 

[EXTERNAL SENDER]

Hello Laurel and Gitta,
 
Would you please distribute the attached schedule from the FY 23 CIP budget to the FC. This
schedule should be read in conjunction with Table 3 found on page 5 of the CIP Staff report for
agenda item 7.
 
The yellow highlighted projects correspond to the projects listed on Table 3 with the exception of
project 811-9903 pavement rehabilitation which is not listed.
 
The schedule shows that of the 14 on-going annual projects listed in Table 3 only 7 projects have
funds budgeted through FY 27. This raises the questions why the other 7 projects have no funding if
these are on-going annually funded projects. Is this an error? Does Staff have an estimate of what
the annual spend should be for these projects?
 
Also the attached schedule shows that for the 7 projects that do have multi-year funding, the total
budgeted for FY 24 is $6,112,932 with approximately $3.6m budgeted annually for FY 25 through FY
27. This raises the question as to the accuracy of these estimates. Should the FC rely on these
estimates in our discussion? 
 
Lastly, the attached schedule shows approximately $3.2m is currently budgeted annually for street
repair and maintenance. The Staff memo mentions that an annual spend of $4.4m is required to
increase the payment condition index (PCI) from the current 73 level to 78. Should the FC assume
that the increase required in spending is $1.2m? Does the new $4.4m reflect any increase in road
materials and labor that has occurred over the past 24 months? 
 
Thank you.
 
Phil Koen 









 

 

We looked at the budgeting accuracy for Los Gatos, Saratoga and Campbell over the past 10 years as 

measured by the cumulative variance of the actual annual operating surplus/(deficit) to the adopted and 

final budgets for annual operating surplus/(deficit).  This information is in each town/city’s ACFR.  The 

graphs of our findings are below this note and the included tables.  Some definitions are at the end but 

marked with an *.  Here is a summary of what we found. 

 

Saratoga      

 YE Actual Operating Surplus (Deficit) - Adopted Budget* =  $ 18,909,130 

 YE Actual Operating Surplus (Deficit) - Final Variance*** =  $ 24,068,720 

      

 Adopted Variance**** / YE Actual Surplus or (Deficit) = 81% 

 Final Variance / Actual Surplus or (Deficit) =  103% 

Campbell      

 YE Actual Operating Surplus (Deficit) - Adopted Budget* =  $ 13,823,303 

 YE Actual Operating Surplus (Deficit) - Final Variance*** =  $ 19,312,789 

      

 Adopted Variance**** / YE Actual Surplus or (Deficit) = 49% 

 Final Variance*** / Actual Surplus or (Deficit) =  69% 
 

A budget can be used as a fiscal management tool or a political tool.  When a municipality consistently 

budgets for operating deficits by intentionally under estimating revenues and over estimating 

expenditures, this can be highly effective in gaining political support for tax increases or not providing 

additional valuable services to residents.  Even worse, it denies the Town Council the ability to do the 

job they were elected to do – namely to allocate the Town’s financial resources. 

Interestingly: 

 Saratoga and Campbell budgeted cumulative operating surplus over the 10-year period. Both 

cities adopted a budgeted operating deficit only once during the 10-year period. Saratoga had 

Los Gatos

38,540,820$ 

YE Actual Operating Surplus (Deficit) - Final Variance*** = 44,539,104$ 

Adopted Variance**** / YE Actual Surplus or (Deficit) = 141%

Final Variance / Actual Surplus or (Deficit) = 163%

YE Actual Operating Surplus (Deficit) - Adopted Budget* =



operating surpluses 9 years out of the past 10 years and Campbell had an operating surplus 8 

years out of the past 10 years. 

 Los Gatos budgeted a cumulative operating deficit over the past 10-years. The Town adopted a 

budgeted operating deficit 8 out of the past 10 years. However actual results were exactly the 

opposite with an operating surplus being reported 8 out of the past 10 years.    

 Saratoga’s final budget to actual cumulative variance was $24m or 104% of the actual result. 

Campbell’s final budget to actual cumulative variance was $19m or 69% of the actual result.  

 Los Gatos’s final budget to actual cumulative variance was $45m or 163% of the actual.  The 

final budgets projected a cumulative operating deficit of  $17m vs. an actual surplus of $27m.  

 Our conclusion is that both Saratoga and Campbell’s budgeting processes reasonably forecasted 

actual outcomes. Los Gatos budgets consistently forecasted deficits when large surpluses were 

achieved.  

 

Definitions: 

 

 *Adopted Budget – The official budget adopted by Council Action in May/June for the following 

fiscal year 

 **Final Budget = Usually corrections are made to the Adopted Budget in the Mid-Year budget.  

This is the “Final Budget”. 

 ***Final Variance = YE Actual Operating Surplus (Deficit) minus Final Budget  

 **** Adopted Variance = YE Actual Operating Surplus (Deficit) minus Adopted Budget 

 

Jak Van Nada, On Behalf of The 

Los Gatos Community Alliance 

 

 






